ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


(1) 	 The Circuit Court erred in concluding that Mr. Bush's claims are barred by the applicable 
Statute of Limitations. 

(2) 	 The Circuit Court erred in failing to recognize that State Farm waived its right to assert a 
statute of limitations defense to Mr. Bush's bad faith claims by paying a portion of the 
damages associated with those claims. 

(3) 	 The Circuit Court erred in failing to recognize that there are numerous questions of fact to 
be decided by a jury which precluded summary judgment for State Farm. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Introduction 

In this case, Gary D. Bush sought to recover underinsured motorists coverage ("VIM") 

benefits following an April 1, 2009 automobile accident. He asserted that State Farm Mutual 

Automobile Insurance Company ("State Farm,") failed to make a commercially reasonable offer of 

VIM coverage and, therefore, was required to reform his policy to provide VIM coverage to him in 

an amount equal to his liability coverage limits. (See A.R. 5-8.) His claims are based on the fact 

that State Farm used a VIM selection/rejection form which is materially different from the form 

"prepared and made available" by the West Virginia Insurance Commissioner under W. Va. Code 

§33-6-31d, to make the mandatory offer, and State Farm otherwise failed to make a commercially 

reasonable offer ofVIM coverage. (See A.R. 6-7.) 

After Mr. Bush filed suit, but before the Circuit Court ruled on State Farm's previously filed 

Motion For Partial Summary Judgment, State Farm conceded the coverage issue, reformed its 

policy, and paid the reformed VIM policy limits of $50,000 to the Plaintiff. (See A.R. 214-215.) 

State Farm also conceded its liability for extra-contractual damages under Hayseeds, Inc. v. State 
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Farm Fire & Cas., 352 S.E. 2d 73 (W.Va. 1986), by paying the Plaintiff the additional amount of 

$16,666.00, which purportedly represented a one-third attorney fee on the paid VIM benefits. (A.R. 

215.) Nevertheless, State Farm continued to pursue its request for partial summary judgment with 

respect to Mr. Bush's common law "bad faith" claims and his claims for alleged violations ofWest 

Virginia's Unfair Trade Practices Act based on its assertion that said claims were time-barred under 

the applicable statute oflimitations. (A.R. 213-230.) 

In its Judgment Order entered on July 12,2017, the Circuit Court found that the one-year 

statute of limitations for Mr. Mr. Bush's claims expired on June 20, 2010, and granted summary 

judgment to State Farm. (A.R. 1-3.) Mr. Bush now presents this appeal and asserts that the Circuit 

Court failed to properly apply the statute of limitations, and further failed to recognize that State 

Farm had waived any statute oflimitations defense to his bad faith claims by paying a portion ofhis 

attorneys fees, and failed to recognize that there are numerous questions of fact to be decided by a 

jury which preclude summary judgment for State Farm. 

Statement of Relevant Factual History 

The underlying facts ofthis action are not in dispute. This case arises from an April 1, 2009 

automobile accident, in which Gary Bush was injured when his vehicle was struck from behind by 

a vehicle operated by Shelly Dawn Perkins. At the time of the accident, Ms. Perkins had liability 

insurance coverage through Farmers & Mechanics OfWest Virginia, with liability policy limits of 

$100,000. (A.R. 29.) It is also undisputed that after Mr. Bush's counsel advised State Farm ofhis 

representation ofMr. Bush on June 3, 2009, State Farm's Claims Representative, Stacy Bitonti, sent 

him the VIM coverage selection/rejection forms for the Bush Policy on June 19, 2009, and indicated 

the State Farm Policy did not include any identified UIM coverage. (See A.R. 93-99, the letters 
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attached to State Farm'sMotion For Partial Summary Judgment as "Exhibits 5, 6 and 7"). Mr. Bush 

filed suit against Ms. Perkins on March 28,2011, andjoined State Farm as an additional Defendant 

in order to seek Wlderinsured motorists coverage under the State Farm policy. (See A.R. 5-8, Mr. 

Bush's Complaint.) Mr. Bush asserted that State Farm never properly offered him VIM coverage 

and also asserted claims against State Farm for common law "bad faith" and alleged violations of 

West Virginia's Unfair Trade Practices Act. (See A.R. 7. ) 

The UIM Coverage Issue 

To properly address the nature ofMr Bush's claims against State Farm, it is first necessary 

to review the historical development of the law surrounding offers of VIM coverage in West 

Virginia. Mr Bush's claims arise from State Farm's failure to make a commercially reasonable offer 

ofUIM coverage as required under W. Va. Code §33-6-31, the "omnibus statute." The omnibus 

statute sets forth requirements which apply to all auto insurance polices issued in West Virginia. 

With respect to Wl- and underinsured motorists coverage, the Statute indicates: 

(b) Nor shall any such policy or contract be so issued or delivered 
unless it shall contain an endorsement or provisions Wldertaking to 
pay the insured all sums which he shall be legally entitled to recover 
as damages from the owner or operator of an uninsured motor 
vehicle, within limits which shall be no less than the requirements of 
section two, article four, chapter seventeen-d ofthis code, as amended 
from time to time: Provided, That such policy or contract shall 
provide an option to the insured with appropriately adjusted 
premiums to pay the insured all sums which he shall be legally 
entitled to recover as damages from the owner or operator of an 
uninsured motor vehicle up to an amount of one hundred thousand 
dollars because ofbodily injury to or death ofone person in anyone 
accident and, subject to said limit for one person, in the amount of 
three hundred thousand dollars because ofbodily injury to or death of 
two or more persons in anyone accident and in the amoWlt of fifty 
thousand dollars because of injury to or destruction of property of 
others in anyone accident: Provided, however, That such 

28014/590 3 



endorsement or provisions may exclude the fIrst three hundred dollars 
of property damage reSUlting from the negligence of an uninsured 
motorist: Provided further, That such policy or contract shall 
provide an option to the insured with appropriately adjusted 
premiums to pay the insured all sums which he shall legally be 
entitled to recover as damages from the owner or operator of an 
uninsured or underinsured motor vehicle up to an amount not less 
than limits ofbodily injury liability insurance and property damage 
liability insurance purchased by the insured without setoffagainst 
the insured's policy or any other policy ... 

W. Va. Code §33-6-31 (emphasis added). 

This Court extensively examined these statutory requirements inBias v. Nationwide Mut. Ins. 

Co., 179 W.Va. 125,365 S.E.2d 789 (1987), and explained: 

Code §3 3 -6-31 (b) addresses both uninsured and underinsured 
motorist coverage. It provides, fIrst that every automobile insurance 
policy issued or delivered in West Virginia contain uninsured 
motorist coverage with minimal limits of coverage as set forth in 
West Virginia Code §17D-4-2 (1986 Replacement Vol.). 
Additionally, it provides that each policy shall offer an option for 
somewhat higher dollar limits ofuninsured motorist, which coverage 
is automatic unless waived in writing by the insured. The section's 
third proviso is that each policy shall offer an option for both 
uninsured and underinsured motorist coverage up to the dollar limits 
of the liability insurance purchased by the insured. 

Id at 126,365 S.E.2d at 790 (emphasis in original). 

Recognizing that the omnibus statute was intended to protect West Virginia consumers who 

might not understand the insurance coverages, this Court noted: 

Where an offer ofoptional coverage is required by statute, the insurer 
has the burden of proving that an effective offer was made, ... and 
that any rejection of said offer by the insured was knowing and 
informed. The insurer's offer must be made in a commercially 
reasonable manner, so as to provide the insured with adequate 
information to make an intelligent decision. 

Id. at 127,365 S.E.2d at 791 (citations omitted, emphasis added). 
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Most impOliantly, this Court held that if an insurer cannot establish that its insured made a 

knowing and intelligent rejection of the optional coverage, the amount of un- or underinsured 

motorists coverage will be extended to the level ofcoverage which the insurer was required to offer. 

The Court stated: 

When an insurer is required by statute to offer optional coverage, it 
is included in the policy by operation oflaw when the insurer fails to 
prove an effective offer and a knowing and intelligent rejection by the 
insured. 

Id As such, Bias placed West Virginia insurers in the position of having to prove their insureds' 

knowing and intelligent rej ection of increased levels ofcoverage by their customers. 

In 1993, the difficulties associated with proving a "knowing and intelligent waiver" prompted 

the West Virginia Legislature to enact W. Va. Code §33-6-31d, which required the Insurance 

Commissioner to promulgate a form for use by all insurers in West Virginia. Under W. Va. Code 

§33-6-31d, 

(a) Optional limits of uninsured motor vehicle coverage and 
underinsured motor vehicle coverage required by section thirty one 
of this article shall be made available to the named insured at the 
time ofinitial application for liability coverage and upon any request 
ofthe named insured on aformpreparedand made available by the 
insurance commissioner. The contents of the form shall be as 
prescribed by the commissioner and shall specifically inform the 
named insured of the coverage offered and the rate calculation 
therefor, including, but not limited to, all levels and amounts of 
such coverage available and the number ofvehicles which will be 
subject to the coverage. 

(b)... Any insurer who issues a motor vehicle insurance policy in 
this state shall provide the form to each person who applies for the 
issuance of such policy by delivering the form to the applicant or by 
mailing the form to the applicant together with the applicant's initial 
premium notice ... 
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(c) ... The contents of a form described in this section which has 
been signed by any named insured shall create a presumption that all 
named insureds under the policy received an effective offer of the 
optional coverages described in this section and that all such named 
insureds exercised a knowing and intelligent election or rejection, as 
the case may be, of such offer as specified in the form. Such election 
or rejection is binding on all persons insured under the policy. 

W. Va. Code §33-6-31d (emphasis added). 

Mr. Bush's claims in this case are based on the fact that State Farm failed to prove that it 

made a commercially reasonable offer ofUIM coverage to him. Mr. Bush initially asserted in his 

Complaint that the failure to use the Commissioner's form resulted in the VIM coverage being 

automatically "rolled-up" to an amount equal to the liability limits. (A.R. 6-7.) That allegation was 

supported by the fact that State Farm's selection/rej ection form had previously been found to violate 

W. Va. Code §33-6-31d in the case ofMartin v. State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Co., 809 

F. Supp. 2d 496 (S.D. W.Va. 2011). Like Mr. Bush, the Martin claimants had sought to recover 

UIM coverage based upon State Farm's failure to use the mandatory, prescribed forms required by 

W. Va. Code §33-6-31d, and to make a commercially reasonable offer ofUIM coverage. The Court 

in Martin examined the validity of State Farm's selection/rejection forms and noted: 

Thus, rather than having one premium for each level of coverage like the Insurance 
Commissioner forms, State Farm's forms instead list either two or four different 
premiums that are dependent on whether the insured qualifies for a multi-vehicle 
discount, and/or whether the insured has collision insurance. Thus, any insured 
marking "select" next to a coverage level has no idea, based on the face ofthe 
UIMform, which premium he or she will be paying. 

Martin, 809 F. Supp.2d, at 504 (emphasis supplied). The selection/rejection forms signed by Mr. 

Bush's wife and relied up by State Farm in this case utilizes the same multi-column format and 

created the same problems for the Bush family. (See A.R. 96-97.) That fact is significant because 
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the claimants in Martin also sought to assert a class action on behalf ofall similarly situated persons, 

a proposed class that would have included Mr. Bush. 

In response to Mr. Bush's claims and the claims in Martin, State Farm asserted that failing 

to use the mandatory form merely resulted in its loss ofa statutory presumption of a commercially 

reasonable offer of VIM coverage and a reversion to the standards for proving a commercially 

reasonable offer set forth by the West Virginia State Supreme Court in Bias. This Court 

subsequently resolved that issue in response to a certified question in the case of Thomas, et al. v. 

McDermitt, et al., 232 W.Va. 159, 751 S.E. 2d 264 (W.Va. 2013), and found that State Farm's 

failure to use the mandatory form resulted in the loss of a statutory presumption, requiring State 

Farm to prove a "commercially reasonable offer" and a "knowing and informed rejection" under the 

standards set forth in Bias. (See Thomas, at Syl. Pts. 3 and 12.) Apparently recognizing that it could 

not make the requisite showing under Bias in this case, State Farm subsequently agreed to roll-up 

Mr. Bush's coverage on January 11,2017, and also paid Mr. Bush a presumed one-third attorney fee 

based on the rolled-up amount.! (See A.R. 214-215, State Farm's Supplemental Memorandum, at 

Footnote 1 on pgs. 2-3, where State Farm admits that it has done so.) 

Before it proceeded to roll up the coverage and pay a portion ofMr. Bush's extra-contractual 

claims in January of2017, State Farm served its Motion For Partial Summary Judgment on June 1, 

2015, asking the Circuit Court to fmd that Mr. Bush's claims for common law bad faith and State 

Farm's alleged violations of West Virginia's Unfair Trade Practices Act were barred by the 

applicable one year statute oflimitations. (See A.R. 26-48) In particular, State Farm asserted that 

1This amount does not represent the actual attorney fees incurred by Mr. Bush. 
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because it provided Mr. Bush's original counsel with a copy of the VIM selection/rejection forms 

on or about June 19,2009, the one year statute of limitations applicable to such bad faith claims 

expired one year later and thus bars his claims. State Farm submitted its Supplemental Memorandum 

OfLaw In Support OfState Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company's Motion For Partial 

Summary Judgment (A.R. 213-231) on March 14,2017, which reiterated its arguments and also 

asserted that the filing ofa class action in Martin did not toll the statute oflimitations since Mr. Bush 

elected to file this suit before the class action was decided. Mr. Bush responded by asserting that the 

statute had not began to run until his underlying claim against the tortfeasor was resolved, and that 

even if it had began to run, it was tolled by the class action in Martin. (See A.R. 156-176 and 625

636.) Mr. Bush also asserted that by voluntarily paying the additional $16,666.00, attomeyfee, State 

Farm waived any statute oflimitations defense it might have had. (See A.R. 168-169.) 

At the June 8, 2017 hearing on State Farm's Motion For Partial Summary Judgment, the 

Circuit Court ruled that Mr. Bush's claims were barred because the statute of limitations began to 

run on June 19,2019, and expired on June 19, 2010. (See A.R. 687.) Based on that finding, the 

Circuit Court granted summary judgment to State Farm in its Judgement Order entered on July 12, 

2017. The Circuit Court found as follows: 

8. 	 Under the second factor enunciated inDunn v. Rockwell, 689 S.E.2d 
255, 265 (W. Va. 2009), the cause of action occurred or accrued 
when Plaintiffknew or should have known State Farm's position that 
the Policy did not provide underinsured motorist coverage. It is clear 
that occurred on June 19, 2009, when State Farm provided his 
counsel with a copy of the Underinsured Motorist Coverage Offer 
form evidencing Plaintiff's wife rejected underinsured motorist 
coverage on April 16, 2008. 

9. 	 The Court concludes that State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance 
Company's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment is now dispositive 
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of all remaining claims as State Farm reformed the policy and paid 
the reformed underinsured motorist coverage limits to Plaintiff. 
Thus, there is no longer an action to reform the policy and the 
remaining claims are claims for common law bad faith and alleged 
violations of the Unfair Trace Practices Act, both of which are 
governed by the one-year statute oflimitation which expired June 20, 
2010. The Court fmds granting State Farm Mutual Automobile 
Insurance Company's Motion for Partial Summary judgment would 
resolve the entirety of this action. 

10. 	 The Court concludes that pursuant to W. Va. Code §55-2-12(c), the 
one-year statute of limitations for Plaintiff s claims against State 
Farm began to run on June 19,2009, and expired on June 20, 2010. 
Plaintiff s claims against State Farm for common law bad faith and 
alleged violations ofthe Unfair Trade Practices Act, which were filed 
on March 28, 2011, are barred by expiration of the statute of 
limitations. 

(See A.R. 2-3.) Significantly, the Circuit Court did not address Mr. Bush's arguments with respect 

to when the statute of limitations began to run, whether the statute was tolled by the filing of the 

Martin litigation, or whether State Farm waived any statute of limitations defense by paying a 

portion of Mr. Bush's extra-contractual damages. Instead, the Circuit Court announced no 

conclusion oflaw at all with respect to Mr. Bush's arguments regarding when his cause ofaction for 

bad faith failure to pay had accrued or the applicability ofthe discovery rule. Likewise, the Circuit 

Court made no findings with regard to when Mr. Bush, acting as a reasonable, diligent person, 

should have discovered the essential elements of a possible cause of action. Nor did the Circuit 

Court make any findings regarding whether State Farm concealed any material fact that could have 

prevented Mr. Bush from discovering such a cause of action or any conclusion of law related to 

whether the statute oflimitations had been tolled by the filing ofa class action concerning the same 

issues. Therefore, Mr. Bush now asserts that the Circuit Court erred by failing to properly apply the 

statute of limitations, failing to recognize that State Farm had waived any statute of limitations 
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defense to his bad faith claims by paying a portion ofhis attorneys fees, and failing to recognize the 

existence ofnumerous questions offact which should have been decided by a jury. Accordingly, Mr. 

Bush now asks that the Circuit Court's award ofsummary judgment be reversed and that this action 

be remanded so that his claims can proceed to a trial on the merits. 

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT 

Petitioner asserts that the Circuit Court erred by failing to properly apply the statute of 

limitations, failing to recognize that State Farm had waived any statute oflimitations defense to his 

bad faith claims, and failing to recognize the existence ofquestions offact which precluded summary 

judgment. 

With respect to the application of the statute of limitations, the Circuit Court was required 

to (1) identify the applicable statute of limitations for the Petitioner's bad faith claims, (2) identify 

when the requisite elements ofthe Petitioner's cause ofaction occurred, (3) apply the discovery rule 

to determine when the statute of limitation began to run by determining when Mr. Bush knew, or 

should have known, ofhis cause ofaction, (4) determine whether State Farm fraudulently concealed 

facts that prevented Mr. Bush from discovering the cause ofaction, and (5) determine if the statute 

of limitation period was arrested by some other tolling doctrine. Because the Circuit Court failed 

to correctly apply this analysis, the July 12,2017 Judgment Order awarding summary judgment to 

State Farm should be reversed. 

With respect to the fIrst inquiry, the Circuit Court correctly determined that the Petitioner's 

bad faith claims were subject to a one year statute oflimitations, but incorrectly found that the statute 

began to run when State Farm sent copies of the DIM selection/rejection forms to Mr. Bush's 

counsel. In fact, the statute oflimitations for an insurer's bad faith failure to pay does not begin to 
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run until the insured substantially prevails on his underlying claim for the insurance proceeds, which 

did not occur in this case until 2017. The Circuit Court incorrectly applied the standard applicable 

to an insurer's bad faith failure to defend an insured. 

With respect to the second inquiry, the Circuit Court failed to recognize that Mr. Bush's 

claim for UIM benefits did not actually accrue until he settled with the underinsured tortfeasor in 

2012, well after he had filed suit against State Farm. Until that settlement was reached, Mr. Bush's

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