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

108688 (D. Mass. June 17,2011) (because plaintiff filed her own suit before class determination 

she cannot avail herself ofAmerican Pipe tolling); Hubbard v. Correctional Med Servs., Civil 

Action No. 04-3412, 2008 U.S. Dist. Lexis 58418 (D.N.J. July 30,2008) (plaintiff who files an 

independent action without waiting for class action determination does not receive the benefit of 

American Pipe tolling); McMillian v. AMC Mortgage Servs., 560 F. Supp.2d 1210 (S.D. Ala. 

2008) (rejecting plaintiffs' argument that American Pipe tolling rule applies to all prospective 

class members, even when plaintiffs were not relying upon class action litigation to protect their 

7Petitioner's contention that he had to disavow the class action and file an individual 
action because of the running of the statute of limitations vis-a-vis his tort claim against Ms. 
Perkins is disingenuous. (Petitioner's Br. at 22 n.5.) Filing a tort claim against Ms. Perkins 
because of the impending statute. of limitations did not necessitate including claims against State 
Farm for common law bad faith and violation of the UTPA, particularly when those claims had 
been asserted as a part of the Martin putative class action. 
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rights); In re Fannie Mae Sec., 503 F. Supp.2d 25 (D.D.C. 2007) (American Pipe tolling does not 

apply to plaintiffs who elect to file their own suits before class certification determination); In re 

Enron Corp. Sees., 465 F. Supp.2d 687 (S.D. Tex. 2006) (American Pipe tolling does not apply 

to plaintiffs who opt-out and file individual lawsuits before a determination on class action status 

is made); Chinn v. Giant Food, Inc., 100 F. Supp.2d 331 (D. Md. 2000) (tolling rule does not 

apply to a plaintiff who files an independent action prior to class action determination); In re 

Brand Name Prescription Drugs Antitrust Litig., Civil Action No. 94-C-897, 1998 U.S. Dist. 

Lexis 12534 (N.D. Ill. Aug. 6, 1998) (inequitable to allow plaintiffs to take advantage of the 

tolling rule designed for putative class members when plaintiffs disavowed putative class by 

filing their own lawsuit); Stutz v. Minnesota Mining MIg. Co., 947 F. Supp. 399 (S.D. Ind. 1996) 

(disingenuous for plaintiff to present himself as a putative class member in order to receive the 

benefits of tolling, but to file his own suit before determination of class action certification); 

Wachovia Bank & Trust Co., NA. v. Nat 'I Student Marketing Corp., 461 F. Supp. 999, 1012 

(D.D.C. 1978), rev 'd on other grounds, 650 F.2d (D.C. Cir. 1980), and cert. denied sub nom. 

Pete, Marwick, Mitchell & Co. v. Wachovia Bank & Trust Co., 475 U.S. 954 (1981) (allowing 

tolling for putative class members who file individual lawsuits prior to class certification "would 

sanction duplicative suits and violate the policies behind American Pipe.") 

The American Pipe rule promotes efficiency. Tolling the statute of limitations for 

putative class members until class certification is determined eliminates the need for putative 

class members to file individual lawsuits in order to preserve the statute of limitations. This, in 

turn, promotes judicial economy, obviating the need for multiple individual lawsuits filed solely 

to protect the statute of limitations. That purpose is not served, however, when putative class 
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members such as Petitioner file individual suits before class certification is detennined. 

Moreover, tolling in this situation pennits Petitioner to simultaneously argue that he is a member 

of the putative class, while simultaneously disavowing that class. Such inconsistencies should 

not be rewarded. 

B. 	 Permitting tolling of the statute of limitations for litigants like Petitioner who file 
separate actions prior to determination of class action status encourages 
manipulation of the statute of limitations. 

Extending tolling to a putative class member who files an individual suit prior to class 

detennination pennits manipulation of the statute oflimitations. The tolling rule established in 

American Pipe was "not intended to be a tool to manipulate limitations periods for parties who, 

intending all along to pursue individual claims, assert reliance on the proposed class action just 

long enough to validate their otherwise time barred claims." Rahr v. Grant Thornton LLP, 142 

F. Supp.2d 793,800 (N.D. Tex. 2000). See also In re Fannie Mae Sec., 503 F. Supp.2d 25,33 

n.7 (D.D.C. 2007) (agreeing with Rahr Court that class action tolling is not designed for 

manipulation of the statute of limitations by plaintiffs who file individual lawsuits); Stutz v. 

Minnesota Mining Mfg. Co., 947 F. Supp. 399,403 (S.D. Ind. 1996) (plaintiff "wants his cake 

and to eat it, too" by seeking the benefit of tolling as the tolling rule "cannot be properly read to 

protect the individual plaintiff who files an independent action after the statute of limitations has 

expired but before a certification decision has been rendered in a timely class complaint which 

supposedly includes the plaintiff.") 

That is exactly what Petitioner has attempted in this case. He chose not to be part of the 

putative class action, expressly disavowing that litigation. It is disingenuous for Petitioner to 

disavow the putative class action, but then attempt to rely upon class action tolling predicated 
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upon the very putative class action of which he wanted no part. 

C. American Pipe's tolling rule does not apply on a cross-jurisdictional basis. 

Not only is Petitioner not entitled to the benefit of class action tolling since he repudiated 

the putative class action by filing his own lawsuit, the cross-jurisdictional tolling sought by 

Petitioner is disfavored. Several courts have adopted intra jurisdictional tolling, wherein the 

statute of limitations is tolled for an individual action filed after the dismissal of a class action, if 

the lawsuits were brought "in the same court system." See Wade v. Danek Med, Inc., 182 F.3d 

281,286-87 (4th Cir. 1999); Portwoodv. Ford Motor Co., 183 m.2d 459, 464-65, 701 N.E.2d 

1102, 1104 (1998). 

The reasoning is that without intrajurisdictional tolling, the same court system would be 

burdened by both the filing of the class action, as well as filings from individual plaintiffs 

seeking to protect their rights in the event class certification was denied. Maestas v. Sofamore 

Danek Group, Inc., 33 S.W.3d 805, 808 (Tenn. 2000). There is a distinction, however, between 

intra jurisdictional tolling and cross-jurisdictional tolling. 

The policy reasons for adopting intra jurisdictional tolling do not extend to favor cross

jurisdictional tolling. Cross-jurisdictional tolling occurs when "a court in one jurisdiction tolls 

the applicable statute of limitations based upon the filing of a class action in another 

jurisdiction." (citations omitted.) Quinn v. Louisiana Citizens Prop. Ins. Co., 118 So.3d 1011, 

1018 n.7 (La. 2012). It "implicates tolling one jurisdiction's statute of limitations pending a 

judicial outcome in a foreign jurisdiction." Maestas at 807. 

Despite approving intrajurisdictional tolling, the Tennessee Supreme Court declined to 

adopt cross-jurisdictional tolling, explaining that it did not confer the same benefits as 
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intrajurisdictional tolling: 

We can find no comparable benefit from cross-jurisdictional tolling, however. Our 
adoption of cross-jurisdictional tolling could, in a general sense, benefit the federal court 
system in it disposition of class actions. Nevertheless, Tennessee '"simply has no interest, 
except perhaps out of comity, in furthering the efficiency and economy of the class action 
procedures of another jurisdiction, whether those of the federal courts or those of another 
state." Wade, 182 F.3d at 287. (footnote omitted.) 

Maestas at 808. Such a rule: 

[W]ould essentially grant to federal courts the power to decide when Tennessee's statute 
oflimitations begins to run. Such an outcome is contrary to our legislature's power to 
adopt statutes oflimitations and the exceptions to those statutes, ... and would arguably 
offend the doctrines of federalism and dual sovereignty. 

Id at 809. 

Similarly, the Court in Portwood v. Ford Motor Co., 183 Ill.2d 459, 701 N.E.2d 1102 

(1998), rejected plaintiffs' argument that American Pipe should apply to all putative class 

members who file individual suits after the federal court's denial of class certification, regardless 

of whether the individual action is filed in state or federal court. The Portwood Court explained 

that permitting individual suits to be filed in the same court where class certification was denied 

reduces the total number of filings in that court system as "protective" filings would not be 

necessary. However, "[t]olling a state statute of limitations during the pendency ofa federal 

class action, however, may actually increase the burden on that state's court system, because 

plaintiffs from across the country may elect to file a subsequent suit in that state solely to take 

advantage of the generous tolling rule." Id, 183 Ill.2d at 465-66, 701 N.E.2d at 1004. 

The Portwood Court also expressed concern about Illinois state courts' lack of control 

over the federal courts' dockets, which would render Illinois' statute of limitations dependent 

upon the actions of the federal court. "State courts should not be required to entertain stale 
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claims simply because the controlling statute of limitations expired while a federal court 

considered whether to certify a class action." Id at 466, 701 N.E.2d at 1104. See also Clemens 

v. DaimlerChrysler Corp., 534 F.3d 1017 (9th Cir. 2008) (analyzing the "weight of authority" 

and determining California would not adopt cross-jurisdictional tolling because of California's 

interest in managing its own judicial system); Wade v. Danek Med, Inc., 182 F.3d 281 (4th Cir. 

1999) (predicting that Virginia would not adopt cross-jurisdictional tolling because the 

Commonwealth ofVirginia has no interest in the efficiency and economy of a class action filed 

in federal court or in another state; cross-jurisdictional tolling would open Virginia to forum

shopping plaintiffs who would take advantage of cross-jurisdictional tolling; and, Virginia's 

statute of limitations would be dependent upon the outcome ofcases in other jurisdictions); In re 

Dairy Farmers ofAm., Inc. Cheese Antitrust Litigation, File No. 9CV3690, 2015 U.S. Dist. 

Lexis 84152 (N.D. Ill. June 29, 2015) (although Court applied American Pipe tolling for 

plaintiffs filing individual actions prior to class deternlination, it declined to adopt cross

jurisdictional tolling); Patterson v. Novartis Pharms. Corp., 909 F. Supp.2d 116 (D.R.1. 2012) 

(noting split of authorities with two state Supreme Courts adopting cross-jurisdictional tolling 

and five state Supreme Courts rejecting the doctrine; applying Massachusetts law and declining 

to adopt cross-jurisdictional tolling); In re Urethane Antitrust Litig., 663 F. Supp.2d 1067 (D. 

Kan. 2009) (predicting Indiana would not recognize cross-jurisdictional tolling as the Court was 

not persuaded Indiana would join the "small minority" ofjurisdictions adopting the doctrine); 

Rader v. Greenberg Traurig, LLP, 237 Ariz. 433, 352 P.3d 465 (Ariz. Ct. App. 2015), review 

denied, 2016 Ariz. Lexis 22 (Jan. 5,2016) (declining to apply cross-jurisdictional tolling beyond 

the legislative enactment ofArizona's savings statute which extended statute oflimitations in 
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event case was dismissed for reasons other than on the merits); Quinn v. Louisiana Citizens 

Prop. Ins. Corp., 118 So.3d 1011 (La. 2012) (in declining to adopt cross-jurisdictional tolling, 

the Court noted rationale of cases such as Portwood raising concerns about forum shopping and 

delays occasioned by awaiting rulings from federal courts were consistent with Louisiana law); 

Adedje v. Westat, Inc., 214 Md. App. 1, 75 A.3d 401 (Md. Ct. Spec. App. 2012) (collecting cases 

and agreeing with the majority in declining to adopt cross-jurisdictional tolling as it would 

deplete Maryland judicial resources and Maryland courts would be forced to wait on other 

jurisdictions to rule on class action status); Ravitch v. Price-Waterhouse, 2002 Pa. Super. 49, 793 

A.2d 939 (2002), appeal denied, 572 Pa. 758,818 A.2d 505 (2003) (recognizing split of 

authorities and, adopting reasoning from Portwood v. Ford Motor Co., declined to adopt cross

jurisdictional tolling); Bell v. Showa Denko KK, 899 S.W.2d 749 (Tex. Ct. App. 1995) 

(declined to adopt cross-jurisdictional tolling); Casey v. Merck & Co., Inc., 283 Va. 411, 722 

S.E.2d 842 (Va. 2012) (concluding Virginia law does not permit cross-jurisdictional tolling.) 

Adopting cross-jurisdictional tolling increases the probability that West Virginia'S courts 

would fall victim to forum shopping, with litigants filing suit in West Virginia because actions 

barred elsewhere would be viable under "an overly generous statute of limitations." Maestas at 

808. Although there could be duplicative protective filings from West Virginia plaintiffs 

awaiting a class action determination, such filings would pale in comparison to the filings by out

of-state plaintiffs attracted by an extended statute of limitations.8 Id. 

8In the instant case, the Martin putative class action was comprised of West Virginia 
residents. However, any rule adopted by the Court would apply to all class actions, regardless of 
whether the putative class was comprised ofWest Virginia residents or residents of multiple 
states. 
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Finally, adopting cross-jurisdictional tolling puts West Virginia's statute of limitations in 

the hands of the federal court system as the statute of limitations would be contingent upon "the 

outcome of class certification as to any litigant who is part of a putative class action filed in any 

federal court in the United States." Maestas at 809. Relying upon the actions of a federal court to 

determine when West Virginia's statute of limitations begins to run is an affront to West Virginia 

sovereignty and the power of the Legislature to establish statutes of limitations. 

IV. Because the lower court properly granted State Farm's summary judgment 
motion on the basis of the statute of limitations, it did not address State Farm's 
alternative argument that it was entitled to summary judgment upon Petitioner's 
claims for alleged violation of the UTP A, and, therefore, the issue is not properly 
before this Court. 

In its summary judgment motion, State Farm argued not only were Petitioner's UTPA 

claims barred by the statute of limitations, but also that no genuine issue of material fact existed 

and State Farm was entitled to judgment as a matter oflaw upon those claims. (A.R. at 35-45.) 

Petitioner agrees the facts are undisputed, but confusingly he also asserts that the lower court 

erred in granting summary jUdgment upon the UTP A claims because factual issues existed. 

(Petitioner's Br. at 2, 13, 28, 30-32.) 

Petitioner did not raise that issue during the hearing below. (A.R. at 671-683.) The lower 

court neither addressed nor ruled upon the question ofwhether State Farm was entitled to 

summary judgment as to the UTP A claims on any grounds other than the statute of limitations. 

CA.R. at 1-4, 687.) 

This Court has long held that it will not pass upon issues that have not been addressed nor 

ruled upon by the trial court: 

"'In the exercise of its appellate jurisdiction, this Court will not decide nonjurisdictional 
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questions which were not considered and decided by the court from which the appeal has 
been taken.' Syllabus Point 1, Mowery v. Hitt, 155 W. Va. 103 [, 181 S.E.2d 334] 
(1971)." SyI. pt. 1, Shacklefordv. Catlett, 161 W. Va. 568,244 S.E.2d 327 (1978). 

Voelker v. Frederick Business Properties Co., syI. pt. 3, 195 W. Va. 246,465 S.E.2d 246 (1995). 

See also Evans v. Bayles, 237 W. Va. 269, 275, 787 S.E.2d 540,546 (2016) (Court will not 

consider a matter that has not been determined by the court from which the appeal is taken); 

Doeringv. City ofRonceverte, syI. pt. 5,228 W. Va. 147,718 S.E.2d 497 (2011) (same); Sands 

v. Security Trust Co., syI. pt. 2, 143 W. Va. 522, 102 S.E.2d 733 (1958) ("This Court will not 

pass on a non jurisdictional question which has not been decided by the trial court in the first 

instance.") 

Because the lower court did not consider State Farm's alternative grounds for summary 

judgment with respect to the UTPA claims, that issue is not before the Court.9 

CONCLUSION 

The lower court's order granting State Farm's Motion for Summary Judgment is correct 

and should be affirmed by this Court. As of June 19, 2009, Petitioner undisputedly knew of State 

Farm's position his policy did not provide UIM coverage and he was in possession of the offer 

forms that were utilized to make the UIM offer to his wife. He did not timely file his claims 

against State Farm for common law bad faith and violation of the UTPA. The lower court 

properly found those claims to be barred by the statute of limitations. 

9Ifthe lower court had considered State Farm's alternative grounds for summary 
judgment, State Farm was entitled to summary judgment for the reasons set forth in State Farm's 
Motion for Partial Summary Judgment. CA.R. at 35-45.)